

BOARD of SUPERVISORS



City Hall

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco 94102-4689
Tel. No. (415) 554-5184
Fax No. (415) 554-5163
TDD/TTY No. (415) 554-5227

MEMORANDUM

TO: Adam Thongsavat, Liaison to the Board of Supervisors, Mayor's Office
Brad Russi, Deputy City Attorney, Office of the City Attorney
John Arntz, Director, Department of Elections
Patrick Ford, Executive Director, Ethics Commission

FROM: Victor Young, Assistant Clerk, Rules Committee 
Board of Supervisors

DATE: December 29, 2025

SUBJECT: CHARTER AMENDMENT INTRODUCED
June 2, 2026

The Board of Supervisors' Rules Committee has received the following Charter Amendment for the June 2, 2026, Election. This matter is being **referred** to you in accordance with Rules of Order 2.22.4.

File No. 251245 (ver1)

Charter Amendment (First Draft) to amend the Charter of the City and County of San Francisco to change the current two-term limits for the office of Mayor and the office of Member of the Board of Supervisors from consecutive term limits to lifetime term limits; at an election to be held on June 2, 2026.

Please review and submit any reports or comments you wish to be included with the legislative file.

If you have any questions or concerns, please call me at (415) 554-7723 or email: victor.young@sfgov.org. To submit documentation, please forward to me at the Board of Supervisors, City Hall, Room 244, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

c: Michael Canning, Ethics Commission
Aly Bonde, Mayor's Office



City and County of San Francisco

Master Report

City Hall
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

File Number: 251245 **File Type:** Charter Amendment **Status:** 30 Day Rule

Enacted:

Effective:

Version: 1 **In Control:** Rules Committee

File Name: Charter Amendment - Lifetime Term Limits for
Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

Date Introduced: 12/16/2025

Requester:

Cost:

Final Action:

Comment:

Title: Charter Amendment (First Draft) to amend the Charter of
the City and County of San Francisco to change the
current two-term limits for the office of Mayor and the
office of Member of the Board of Supervisors from
consecutive term limits to lifetime term limits; at an
election to be held on June 2, 2026.

Sponsors: Mahmood;
Melgar, Sherrill,
Dorsey, Sauter
and Wong

History of Legislative File 251245

Ver	Acting Body	Date	Action	Sent To	Due Date	Result
1	President	12/16/2025	ASSIGNED UNDER 30 DAY RULE	Rules Committee	01/15/2026	

1 [Charter Amendment - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of
2 Supervisors]

3 **Describing and setting forth a proposal to the voters to amend the Charter of the City and**
4 **County of San Francisco, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, to change the current**
5 **two-term limits for the office of Mayor and the office of Member of the Board of**
6 **Supervisors from consecutive term limits to lifetime term limits.**

7
8 Section 1. The Board of Supervisors hereby submits to the qualified voters of the City
9 and County, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, a proposal to amend the Charter of the
10 City and County by revising Sections 2.101 and 3.101, to read as follows:

11 NOTE: **Unchanged Charter text and uncodified text** are in plain font.
12 **Additions** are *single-underline italics Times New Roman font*.
13 **Deletions** are *strike through italics Times New Roman font*.
14 **Asterisks** (* * * *) indicate the omission of unchanged Charter
15 subsections.

16 **SEC. 2.101. TERM OF OFFICE.**

17 (a) Each member of the Board of Supervisors shall be elected at a general election
18 and shall serve a four-year term commencing on the eighth day in January following election and
19 until a successor qualifies. *The respective terms of office of the members of the Board of*
Supervisors in effect on the date this Charter is adopted shall continue.

20 (b) No person *elected or appointed as a Supervisor* may serve as *such a Supervisor*
21 for more than two *successive* four-year terms. *For purposes of this Section 2.101, a part of a*
22 *term that exceeds two years shall count as a four-year term; a part of a term that is two years or*
23 *less shall not. Any person appointed, elected, or any combination thereof to the office of*
24 *Supervisor to complete in excess of two years of a four-year term shall be deemed, for the*
25 *purpose of this section, to have served one full term. No person having served two successive*

1 ~~four year terms may serve as a Supervisor, either by election or appointment, until at least four~~
2 ~~years after the expiration of the second successive term in office. Any Supervisor who resigns~~
3 ~~with less than two full years remaining until the expiration of the term shall be deemed, for the~~
4 ~~purposes of this section, to have served a full four year term.~~

5 (c) Notwithstanding subsection (b), any person who is holding the office of
6 Supervisor as of June 2, 2026, and who has served in the office in excess of the lifetime term
7 limit in subsection (b) or who will have served in the office in excess of the lifetime term limit
8 before completion of their term of office, may complete their term of office. In addition, any
9 person who is elected as a Supervisor at the election on June 2, 2026, may complete the term of
10 office for which they were elected, regardless of whether their holding the office would otherwise
11 violate the lifetime term limit.

SEC. 3.101. TERM OF OFFICE.

14 The Mayor shall serve a four-year term. No person shall serve as mayor for more than
15 two ~~successive four-year~~ terms. For purposes of this Section 3.101, a ~~A~~ part of a term that
16 exceeds two years shall count as a ~~full~~four-year term; a part of a term that is two years or less
17 shall not. There shall be no limit on the non-successive terms that a person may serve.

19 APPROVED AS TO FORM:
20 DAVID CHIU, City Attorney

21 By: /s/ Bradley A. Russi
22 BRADLEY A. RUSSI
23 Deputy City Attorney

LEGISLATIVE DIGEST

[Charter Amendment - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors]

Describing and setting forth a proposal to the voters to amend the Charter of the City and County of San Francisco, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, to change the current two-term limits for the office of Mayor and the office of Member of the Board of Supervisors from consecutive term limits to lifetime term limits.

Existing Law

The City Charter provides that no person may serve as Mayor for more than two successive four-year terms. The Charter also provides that no person may serve as a member of the Board of Supervisors for more than two successive four-year terms. If a person has served as Mayor or Supervisor for two successive four-year terms, that person may leave office for at least four years and then serve as Mayor or Supervisor again for two successive four-year terms.

Amendments to Current Law

The proposed measure would amend the Charter to provide lifetime term limits for the office of Mayor and the office of Supervisor. Under the proposed measure, a person who has served as Mayor may only serve two four-year terms and a person who has served as Supervisor may only serve two four-year terms – whether successive or non-successive. As to Supervisors, any person who is holding the office of Supervisor as of June 2, 2026, and who has served in the office in excess of the lifetime term limit or who will have served in the office in excess of the lifetime term limit before completion of their term of office, may complete their term of office. A person who is elected as Supervisor at the election on June 2, 2026, may complete the term of office for which they were elected, regardless of whether their holding the office would otherwise violate the lifetime term limit. Aside from these limited exceptions, the lifetime term limits would apply to any person who has already served two terms as Mayor or two terms as Supervisor.

Introduction Form

(by a Member of the Board of Supervisors or the Mayor)

I hereby submit the following item for introduction (select only one):

- 1. For reference to Committee (Ordinance, Resolution, Motion or Charter Amendment)
- 2. Request for next printed agenda (For Adoption Without Committee Reference)
(Routine, non-controversial and/or commendatory matters only)
- 3. Request for Hearing on a subject matter at Committee
- 4. Request for Letter beginning with "Supervisor" inquires..."
- 5. City Attorney Request
- 6. Call File No. from Committee.
- 7. Budget and Legislative Analyst Request (attached written Motion)
- 8. Substitute Legislation File No.
- 9. Reactivate File No.
- 10. Topic submitted for Mayoral Appearance before the Board on

The proposed legislation should be forwarded to the following (please check all appropriate boxes):

- Small Business Commission
- Youth Commission
- Ethics Commission
- Planning Commission
- Building Inspection Commission
- Human Resources Department

General Plan Referral sent to the Planning Department (proposed legislation subject to Charter 4.105 & Admin 2A.53):

- Yes
- No

(Note: For Imperative Agenda items (a Resolution not on the printed agenda), use the Imperative Agenda Form.)

Sponsor(s):

Subject:

Long Title or text listed:

Signature of Sponsoring Supervisor:

From: [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#)
To: [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [RUSSI, BRAD \(CAT\)](#); [Mahmood, Bilal \(BOS\)](#); [Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica \(BOS\)](#); [Rosas, Lorenzo \(BOS\)](#); [Dahl, Bryan \(BOS\)](#); [Bell, Tita \(BOS\)](#); [Hare, Emma \(BOS\)](#); [Sinn, Andrew \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24:12 AM
Attachments: [Charter Amendment - Final.docx](#)
[Digest.docx](#)
[D5 Introduction Form - Ordinance - Charter Amendment - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors.pdf](#)

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | (she/her) | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5
City Hall, Room 272
(415) 554-6758
[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

From: [Russi, Brad \(CAT\)](#)
To: [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#); [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#); [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [Mahmood, Bilal \(BOS\)](#); [Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica \(BOS\)](#); [Rosas, Lorenzo \(BOS\)](#); [Dahl, Bryan \(BOS\)](#); [Bell, Tita \(BOS\)](#); [Hare, Emma \(BOS\)](#); [Sinn, Andrew \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:47:45 AM
Attachments: [image001.png](#)

I approve as to form. Thanks.

Bradley Russi

Deputy City Attorney
Office of City Attorney David Chiu
(415) 554-4645 Direct

Attorney-Client Communication - Do Not Disclose
Confidential Attorney Work Product - Do Not Disclose

This email may contain privileged or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, please reply to this email to inform me of your receipt and then destroy all copies.

From: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:40 AM
To: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>; BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: Russi, Brad (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

We are seeking the approval from Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi for use of his electronic signature and approval as to form, by reply to this email. Thanks.

Best regards,

Jocelyn Wong

San Francisco Board of Supervisors
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco, CA 94102
T: 415.554.7702 | F: 415.554.5163
jocelyn.wong@sfgov.org | www.sfbos.org

(VIRTUAL APPOINTMENTS) To schedule a “virtual” meeting with me (on Microsoft Teams), please

ask and I can answer your questions in real time.

Due to the current COVID-19 health emergency and the Shelter in Place Order, the Office of the Clerk of the Board is working remotely while providing complete access to the legislative process and our services



Click [here](#) to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form

The [Legislative Research Center](#) provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998.

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information—including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees—may appear on the Board of Supervisors' website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

From: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24 AM

To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>

Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>

Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | *(she/her)* | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5
City Hall, Room 272
(415) 554-6758
[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

From: [Bell, Tita \(BOS\)](#)
To: [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#); [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [RUSSI, BRAD \(CAT\)](#); [Mahmood, Bilal \(BOS\)](#); [Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica \(BOS\)](#); [Rosas, Lorenzo \(BOS\)](#); [Dahl, Bryan \(BOS\)](#); [Hare, Emma \(BOS\)](#); [Sinn, Andrew \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:42:36 AM
Attachments: [image001.png](#)

Confirming co-sponsorship for Supervisor Sauter

Tita Bell

Chief of Staff
Office of Supervisor Danny Sauter
415-554-7451

From: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:40 AM
To: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>; BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

We are seeking the approval from Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi for use of his electronic signature and approval as to form, by reply to this email. Thanks.

Best regards,

Jocelyn Wong

San Francisco Board of Supervisors
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244
San Francisco, CA 94102
T: 415.554.7702 | F: 415.554.5163
jocelyn.wong@sfgov.org | www.sfbos.org

(VIRTUAL APPOINTMENTS) To schedule a “virtual” meeting with me (on Microsoft Teams), please ask and I can answer your questions in real time.

Due to the current COVID-19 health emergency and the Shelter in Place Order, the Office of the Clerk of the Board is working remotely while providing complete access to the legislative process and our services



Click [here](#) to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form

The [Legislative Research Center](#) provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998.

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information—including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees—may appear on the Board of Supervisors' website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

From: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24 AM
To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | (she/her) | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5
City Hall, Room 272
(415) 554-6758

[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

From: [Dahl, Bryan \(BOS\)](#)
To: [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#); [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [RUSSI, BRAD \(CAT\)](#); [Mahmood, Bilal \(BOS\)](#); [Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:44:49 AM

Hello,

Supervisor Dorsey's is confirmed.

Thank you,
Bryan

Bryan Dahl | Legislative Aide
Office of Supervisor Matt Dorsey, District 6
San Francisco City Hall, Room 284
bryan.dahl@sfgov.org | (415) 554-7970

From: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24 AM
To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | *(she/her)* | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5
City Hall, Room 272
(415) 554-6758
[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

From: [Hare, Emma \(BOS\)](#)
To: [RUSSI, BRAD \(CAT\)](#); [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#); [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#); [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [Mahmood, Bilal \(BOS\)](#); [Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica \(BOS\)](#); [Rosas, Lorenzo \(BOS\)](#); [Dahl, Bryan \(BOS\)](#); [Bell, Tita \(BOS\)](#); [Sinn, Andrew \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: Re: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 2:01:32 PM
Attachments: [image001.png](#)

Confirming co-sponsorship for Supervisor Melgar

Emma Hare

Legislative Aide

Office of Supervisor Myrna Melgar

From: Russi, Brad (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:47 AM
To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>; Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>; BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

I approve as to form. Thanks.

Bradley Russi

Deputy City Attorney

Office of City Attorney David Chiu

(415) 554-4645 Direct

Attorney-Client Communication - Do Not Disclose
Confidential Attorney Work Product - Do Not Disclose

This email may contain privileged or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, please reply to this email to inform me of your receipt and then destroy all copies.

From: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:40 AM
To: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>; BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: Russi, Brad (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>;

Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>

Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

We are seeking the approval from Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi for use of his electronic signature and approval as to form, by reply to this email. Thanks.

Best regards,

Jocelyn Wong

San Francisco Board of Supervisors

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244

San Francisco, CA 94102

T: 415.554.7702 | F: 415.554.5163

jocelyn.wong@sfgov.org | www.sfbos.org

(VIRTUAL APPOINTMENTS) To schedule a “virtual” meeting with me (on Microsoft Teams), please ask and I can answer your questions in real time.

Due to the current COVID-19 health emergency and the Shelter in Place Order, the Office of the Clerk of the Board is working remotely while providing complete access to the legislative process and our services



Click [here](#) to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form

The [Legislative Research Center](#) provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 1998.

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Board of Supervisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information—including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees—may appear on the Board of Supervisors' website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.

From: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>

Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24 AM

To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>

Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS)

<bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>;

Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell,

Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS)

<andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>

Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of

Supervisors

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | (she/her) | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5
City Hall, Room 272
(415) 554-6758
[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

From: [Sinn, Andrew \(BOS\)](#)
To: [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#); [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [RUSSI, BRAD \(CAT\)](#); [Mahmood, Bilal \(BOS\)](#); [Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica \(BOS\)](#); [Rosas, Lorenzo \(BOS\)](#); [Dahl, Bryan \(BOS\)](#); [Bell, Tita \(BOS\)](#); [Hare, Emma \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 2:17:57 PM

Confirming Supervisor Wong's co-sponsorship of this measure

Andrew Sinn | Chief of Staff
Office of Supervisor Alan Wong, District 5

From: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24 AM
To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | (she/her) | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5

City Hall, Room 272

(415) 554-6758

[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

From: [Rosas, Lorenzo \(BOS\)](#)
To: [Logan, Samantha \(BOS\)](#); [BOS Legislation, \(BOS\)](#)
Cc: [Sherrill, Stephen \(BOS\)](#); [Chung, Lauren \(BOS\)](#)
Subject: RE: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors
Date: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 3:35:17 PM

I'm confirming Supervisor Sherrill's co-sponsorship.

Thank you, Sam!

Lorenzo Rosas (he/him) | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Stephen Sherrill
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 2
City Hall, Room 256
(415) 554-7752
<https://sfbos.org/supervisor-sherrill-district-2>

[Sign up for our newsletter!](#)

[Twitter](#) | [Instagram](#)

From: Logan, Samantha (BOS) <sam.logan@sfgov.org>
Sent: Tuesday, December 16, 2025 11:24 AM
To: BOS Legislation, (BOS) <bos.legislation@sfgov.org>
Cc: RUSSI, BRAD (CAT) <Brad.Russi@sfcityatty.org>; Mahmood, Bilal (BOS) <bilal.mahmood@sfgov.org>; Gutierrez Garcia, Jessica (BOS) <Jessica.GutierrezGarcia@sfgov.org>; Rosas, Lorenzo (BOS) <Lorenzo.Rosas@sfgov.org>; Dahl, Bryan (BOS) <bryan.dahl@sfgov.org>; Bell, Tita (BOS) <tita.bell@sfgov.org>; Hare, Emma (BOS) <emma.hare@sfgov.org>; Sinn, Andrew (BOS) <andrew.sinn@sfgov.org>
Subject: D5 Ordinance Introduction - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of Supervisors

Good morning,

Please find attached the introduction form, legislative digest, and ordinance from our office setting forth a Charter Amendment proposal to change the current two-term limits from consecutive to lifetime term limits.

I have copied the offices of Supervisors Sherrill, Dorsey, Sauter, Melgar, and Wong to confirm co-sponsorship.

Deputy City Attorney Brad Russi is also copied above to confirm this legislation is approved as to form.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you!

Best,

Sam Logan | (she/her) | Legislative Director
Office of Supervisor Bilal Mahmood
San Francisco Board of Supervisors, District 5
City Hall, Room 272
(415) 554-6758
[Join Our District 5 Newsletter](#)

1 [Charter Amendment - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of
2 Supervisors]

3 **Describing and setting forth a proposal to the voters to amend the Charter of the City and**
4 **County of San Francisco, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, to change the current**
5 **two-term limits for the office of Mayor and the office of Member of the Board of**
6 **Supervisors from consecutive term limits to lifetime term limits.**

7

8 Section 1. The Board of Supervisors hereby submits to the qualified voters of the City
9 and County, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, a proposal to amend the Charter of the
10 City and County by revising Sections 2.101 and 3.101, to read as follows:

11 NOTE: **Unchanged Charter text and uncodified text** are in plain font.
12 **Additions** are *single-underline italics Times New Roman font*.
13 **Deletions** are *strike through italics Times New Roman font*.
14 **Asterisks** (* * * *) indicate the omission of unchanged Charter
15 subsections.

16 **SEC. 2.101. TERM OF OFFICE.**

17 (a) Each member of the Board of Supervisors shall be elected at a general election
18 and shall serve a four-year term commencing on the eighth day in January following election and
19 until a successor qualifies. *The respective terms of office of the members of the Board of*
Supervisors in effect on the date this Charter is adopted shall continue.

20 (b) No person *elected or appointed as a Supervisor* may serve as *such a Supervisor*
21 for more than two *successive* four-year terms. *For purposes of this Section 2.101, a part of a*
22 *term that exceeds two years shall count as a four-year term; a part of a term that is two years or*
23 *less shall not. Any person appointed, elected, or any combination thereof to the office of*
24 *Supervisor to complete in excess of two years of a four-year term shall be deemed, for the*
25 *purpose of this section, to have served one full term. No person having served two successive*

1 ~~four year terms may serve as a Supervisor, either by election or appointment, until at least four~~
2 ~~years after the expiration of the second successive term in office. Any Supervisor who resigns~~
3 ~~with less than two full years remaining until the expiration of the term shall be deemed, for the~~
4 ~~purposes of this section, to have served a full four year term.~~

5 (c) Notwithstanding subsection (b), any person who is holding the office of
6 Supervisor as of June 2, 2026, and who has served in the office in excess of the lifetime term
7 limit in subsection (b) or who will have served in the office in excess of the lifetime term limit
8 before completion of their term of office, may complete their term of office. In addition, any
9 person who is elected as a Supervisor at the election on June 2, 2026, may complete the term of
10 office for which they were elected, regardless of whether their holding the office would otherwise
11 violate the lifetime term limit.

SEC. 3.101. TERM OF OFFICE.

14 The Mayor shall serve a four-year term. No person shall serve as mayor for more than
15 two ~~successive four-year~~ terms. For purposes of this Section 3.101, a ~~A~~ part of a term that
16 exceeds two years shall count as a ~~full~~four-year term; a part of a term that is two years or less
17 shall not. There shall be no limit on the non-successive terms that a person may serve.

19 APPROVED AS TO FORM:
20 DENNIS J. HERRERA, City Attorney

21 By: /s/ Bradley A. Russi
22 BRADLEY A. RUSSI
23 Deputy City Attorney

1 [Charter Amendment - Lifetime Term Limits for Mayor and Members of the Board of
2 Supervisors]

3 **Describing and setting forth a proposal to the voters to amend the Charter of the City and**
4 **County of San Francisco, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, to change the current**
5 **two-term limits for the office of Mayor and the office of Member of the Board of**
6 **Supervisors from consecutive term limits to lifetime term limits.**

7
8 Section 1. The Board of Supervisors hereby submits to the qualified voters of the City
9 and County, at an election to be held on June 2, 2026, a proposal to amend the Charter of the
10 City and County by revising Sections 2.101 and 3.101, to read as follows:

11 NOTE: **Unchanged Charter text and uncodified text** are in plain font.
12 **Additions** are *single-underline italics Times New Roman font*.
13 **Deletions** are ~~strike through italics Times New Roman font~~.
14 **Asterisks** (* * * *) indicate the omission of unchanged Charter
15 subsections.

16 **SEC. 2.101. TERM OF OFFICE.**

17 (a) Each member of the Board of Supervisors shall be elected at a general election
18 and shall serve a four-year term commencing on the eighth day in January following election and
19 until a successor qualifies. ~~The respective terms of office of the members of the Board of~~
~~Supervisors in effect on the date this Charter is adopted shall continue.~~

20 (b) No person elected or appointed as a Supervisor may serve as such a Supervisor
21 for more than two successive four-year terms. For purposes of this Section 2.101, a part of a
22 term that exceeds two years shall count as a four-year term; a part of a term that is two years or
23 less shall not. Any person appointed, elected, or any combination thereof to the office of
24 Supervisor to complete in excess of two years of a four-year term shall be deemed, for the
25 purpose of this section, to have served one full term. No person having served two successive

1 ~~four year terms may serve as a Supervisor, either by election or appointment, until at least four~~
2 ~~years after the expiration of the second successive term in office. Any Supervisor who resigns~~
3 ~~with less than two full years remaining until the expiration of the term shall be deemed, for the~~
4 ~~purposes of this section, to have served a full four year term.~~

5 (c) Notwithstanding subsection (b), any person who is holding the office of
6 Supervisor as of June 2, 2026, and who has served in the office in excess of the lifetime term
7 limit in subsection (b) or who will have served in the office in excess of the lifetime term limit
8 before completion of their term of office, may complete their term of office. In addition, any
9 person who is elected as a Supervisor at the election on June 2, 2026, may complete the term of
10 office for which they were elected, regardless of whether their holding the office would otherwise
11 violate the lifetime term limit.

SEC. 3.101. TERM OF OFFICE.

14 The Mayor shall serve a four-year term. No person shall serve as mayor for more than
15 two ~~successive four-year~~ terms. For purposes of this Section 3.101, a ~~A~~ part of a term that
16 exceeds two years shall count as a ~~full~~four-year term; a part of a term that is two years or less
17 shall not. There shall be no limit on the non-successive terms that a person may serve.

19 APPROVED AS TO FORM:
20 ~~DENNIS J. HERRERA DAVID CHIU~~, City Attorney

21 By: /s/ Bradley A. Russi
22 BRADLEY A. RUSSI
23 Deputy City Attorney